Public Document Pack

ENFIELD

Council

Harry Blake-Herbert

Governance and Scrutiny Team

Direct: 020 8132 0807

e-mail: Harry.Blake-Herbert@enfield.gov.uk

FINANCE & PERFORMANCE
SCRUTINY PANEL

Thursday, 11th April, 2024 at 7.00 pm in the Conference Room,
Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield, EN1 3XA

Membership:

Clirs: Nawshad Ali (Chair), Sabri Ozaydin (Vice Chair), Guney Dogan, Thomas
Fawns, Alessandro Georgiou, Ayten Guzel, Paul Pratt, and Julian Sampson.

AGENDA - PART 1
1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES
2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST

Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary, other pecuniary or
non-pecuniary interests relating to items on the agenda.

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 6)

To receive and agree the minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 7 March
2024.

4. BUDGET FOR SEN CHILDREN'S SERVICES, CARE PACKAGES &
TRANSPORT (Pages 7 - 38)

To receive an update on special educational need and disabilities (SEND)
placements, budget for SEND Children’s services, care packages, transport
costs, and special needs school packages.

5. WORK PROGRAMME 2023/24 (Pages 39 - 42)

To note the completion of the Work Programme for 2023/24 and that the
Finance & Performance Scrutiny Panel Work Programme for 2024/25 will be



discussed at the first meeting of the new municipal year.
DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

To note the dates of future meetings will be confirmed following Annual
Council on Wednesday 15 May 2024.



Page 1 Agenda ltem 3

FINANCE & PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL - 7.3.2024

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE FINANCE &
PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL HELD ON THURSDAY,
/TH MARCH, 2024

MEMBERS: Councillors: Nawshad Ali (Chair), Sabri Ozaydin (Vice Chair), Hannah
Dyson, Thomas Fawns, Paul Pratt, and Julian Sampson.

Officers: Joanne Drew (Strategic Director of Housing and Regeneration), Claire
Eldred (Head of Finance), Olga Bennet (Director of Finance: Capital & Commercial),
Jon Sharkey (Head of Public Realm Services), Sarah Gilroy (Policy and Performance
Manager), and Harry Blake-Herbert (Governance Officer).

Also Attending: Clir George Savva (Cabinet Member for Social Housing), Clir Ergin
Erbil (Deputy Leader of the Council), and press.

1.

WELCOME AND APOLOGIES
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.

Apologies for absence were received from Cllir Ayten Guzel, and Clir
Alessandro Georgiou who was substituted by Clir Hannah Dyson.

DECLARATION OF INTEREST
Clir Sabri Ozaydin stated that he was a Director of Housing Gateway Ltd.
MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 16 January 2024 were
AGREED.

TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION AND HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT
BUDGET OVERVIEW

Joanne Drew introduced the key aspects of the report. The context, budgetary
pressures, causes, and impacts of temporary accommodation and
homelessness in the borough were outlined; as were the Council’s strategies
and solutions to address/ mitigate them, and support residents. Additionally,
the background, costs, effects and performance of the repairs and
maintenance service; as well as disposals and available grant funding for
development associated with Enfield’s social housing service and the housing
revenue account budget, were highlighted.

Clir Savva thanked the Director and associated officers for all of their work in
ensuring that the Council continues to provide quality accommodation for
residents, highlighting that 81.25% decency had been achieved. He



Page 2
FINANCE & PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL - 7.3.2024

emphasised the need to build affordable housing quickly to address the issue
of homelessness nationally, and appealed to the government for their help in
pursuit of this.

Clir Erbil added his thanks to officers for their work in this matter, and
reiterated the size of the challenge temporary accommodation and
homelessness posed both in the borough and nationally. He highlighted that
2000 families in Enfield faced Section 21 notices in the last 5 years, and
implored the government to outlaw no fault evictions.

In response to Members queries regarding the need for more affordable
housing, officers advised that the Local Plan estimates the borough’s housing
need over the next 20 years to be 39,000 new homes. Meridian Water was
described as an important part of delivering this, with another 100 homes
anticipated to be handed over in the next few months, but it was only one
element of a larger strategy. Joanne expressed that there had been a
complete slowdown in the delivery of all housing development schemes
nationally due to the volatile economic environment. She highlighted that the
Council’s attempts to enter contracts in development schemes had found
prices coming back at 40% over budget, and partners were unwilling to accept
any of the associated risk, thus it was uneconomic and impractical to build. It
was explained that the market was starting to see more stability, but costs
were still high, and grant levels were not sufficient to bridge the viability gaps;
a scheme at Upton and Raynham was given as an example of shortfall. Cllr
Erbil added that Meridian Water was a 25-year project, one of the largest
schemes of its kind in the country and the Council were dedicated to building
more affordable housing; hence had made themselves the master planner. He
described how 400 families were approaching Enfield Council in a month
regarding housing.

In response to Members’ questions and comments relating to moving money
from temporary accommodation to building more homes, officers responded
that their accommodation strategy to avoid placing people into hotels involved
actively looking across the country at good value homes which would be
suitable for residents. Joanne explained that it was simply unaffordable for
many Enfield residents to live in London any longer, and they had to be
realistic about what was affordable, otherwise residents would come back to
the council as homeless and need rehousing again in the near future. She
added that they were actively lobbying government, with a small increase in
councils’ flexibility to use right to buy receipts, whereby 50% of receipts could
be put to a development scheme (up from 40%), to make them more viable,
being announced in the budget. Officers conveyed that temporary
accommodation was revenue funded, whereas building was capital funding,
and while borrowing could be funded to invest in council homes, they could
not build quickly enough to address to the pressures, so had to pay the costs
of both in the intervening period. Olga Bennet added that they were looking at
capital solutions to own more of the temporary accommodation stock, with a
£30m delegation budgeted to review capital solutions more quickly, although
there had been a rise in costs due to changes in the private rented sector.



Page 3
FINANCE & PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL - 7.3.2024

In response to Members’ enquiries regarding what affordable housing in
Enfield offered, officer replied that social housing and affordable housing rents
were around half the rents of the private rented sector, so were better value
for money, generally affordable and covered by the benefit regime. However,
they could not produce enough to meet the needs of residents, so had to rely
on the private rented sector and were trying to expand their portfolio but
outside of London. CliIr Erbil expressed a hope that future governments would
allow some devolved powers to deliver a rent cap.

In response to Members’ questions relating to lifts in council housing blocks,
officers advised that it was a challenging issue, with over 200 lifts in council
blocks in the borough. Joanne described that they were undergoing a process
of replacement, but lifts were still breaking down and required regular
maintenance and safety checks. She explained that they had replaced a
previously underperforming lift contractor and couldn’t easily obtain
replacement parts. It was expressed that an improvement plan was being
worked on, that they were measuring lift outages and were working hard to
have all lifts in use as much as possible. Joanne confirmed the open
procurement process and that advisors assessed the value for money and
quality of the goods and delivery, but anti-social activity did sometimes occur
which had caused problems.

In response to Members queries relating to property quality/ standards
inspections, officers responded that they had a property standard which
informed landlords as to the condition and standards properties are expected
to meet. Properties were said to be inspected and landlords must provide
evidence of compliance, for example gas certificates. It was conveyed that
when repair requests were received relating to damp and mould, the council
progress those as a priority, and recharge the landlord. Temporary
accommodation was being moved to the Housing Gateway which would be
resourced to undertake more property checks, and save the housing benefit
costs, which could be used to ensure a better-quality service.

In response to Members’ questions and comments regarding pre-emptive
strategies, officers replied that there was an Empty Homes Week national
campaign designed at bringing empty homes in the private sector back into
use. Joanne expressed that Enfield offered advice and support incentives to
homeowners of empty properties who were struggling to bring the property
into use. The council could do the works and if the homeowner allowed it to
be let through Enfield Lets for a homeless family for 5 years, they wouldn't
need to pay back those capital costs. Forty properties were said to have been
brought back into use this year through that initiative. Home sharing was said
to be another scheme whereby, in partnership with Age UK, underoccupied
homes of elderly people could be shared with younger people in return for
support for the resident. Homeowners could also rent rooms in their homes,
for which there were good tax incentives available. Olga Bennet added that
properties which remained unoccupied for 2 years were charged twice the
normal council tax rate, which would be reduced to one year from 2024. If
empty for more than 5 years the council tax rate charged would be threefold
and if empty for 10 years, four times the council tax rate. Joanne described a



Page 4
FINANCE & PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL - 7.3.2024

Homes for Ukraine type scheme as needing processes to manage
safeguarding issues which could be tackled at a national level, but something
they would happily support and administer.

In response to Members’ enquiries relating to subsidy loss, officers advised
that there would be less subsidy loss once the temporary accommodation
stock had been transferred into Enfield Lets; this was described as a forward-
thinking approach which worked for all involved parties. The housing subsidy
shortfall which had built up over the past 12 years had put pressure on
councils.

In response to Members’ questions regarding council performance in rent
arrears collection, officers clarified the change in policy to move to their
statutory duty. Joanne highlighted the importance of tenants paying their rent
regularly and in full and that if they were in difficulties, they should speak to
the council about getting a repayment plan. In the case of residents who
choose not to pay, officers were more quickly intervening to convey to them
that if they didn’t pay, the council would end its duty to accommodate them, as
was in line with statute, to allow for the provision of support to all residents.
Enforcing the rent policy at an early stage also helped to prevent residents
getting into high levels of debt which become unmanageable for them; this
combined with being honest and transparent with residents so that they
understand the reality of situation, was leading to improved payment.

In response to Members queries regarding how low-income families who were
behind/ unable to pay their rents were supported, officers replied that they
accelerated their Home Office cases to get them settled, to determine whether
they could claim their rights and benefits, then looked for the cheapest form of
accommodation available to them, and this process was reducing their case
load.

In response to Members’ questions and comments relating to homelessness
duty, officers advised that they worked with affected households
preventatively to try and get them private rented tenancies that they can afford
with their settled status, likely in more affordable areas of the country. As
these households have no local connection accommodation rights, there is
more flexibility in how they are accommodated. Joanne added that there was
a service provided by BEAM which offered additional support, including
translations and access to employment and housing.

QUARTERLY REVENUE MONITORING REPORT

Olga Bennet introduced and highlighted the key aspects of the report,
including but not limited to: efforts to preserve risk reserves, and the main
areas of and measures to reduce the overspend.

In response to Members’ enquiries regarding the impact of additional adverse
variances on reserves, staff turnover in children’s services and capital
receipts, officers responded that there were always risks of adverse
variances. They were being transparent that the situation could change, and



Page 5
FINANCE & PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL - 7.3.2024

further details of these potential variances could be found in an appendix to
the report. On the issue of staff turnover, it was said that this would be best
answered by the relevant Executive Director, but assurances were made that
there was support available to staff in this area with training courses,
oversight time with managers and a Microsoft co-pilot Al trial to reduce the
burden of additional administration. Olga expressed that Claverings would be
the major capital receipt next year. Clir Erbil added that there was an item on
disposals for agreement at next week’s Cabinet meeting.

In response to Members’ questions relating to reserves and contingency
funds, officers replied that there was an ongoing budget for contingencies,
with £3m built in for 2023/24, there would be built in budget contingencies
next year as well, and there were built in contingencies for risk reserves this
year.

In response to Members queries relating to on-street parking and enforcement
receipts, officers advised that these were governed by strict legislation, and so
income could not be increased. Clir Erbil added that he had raised the issue
of parking enforcement with the new Executive Director of Environment and
Communities and hoped there would be improvements with the service soon.

QUARTERLY CAPITAL MONITORING REPORT

Olga Bennet introduced and highlighted the key aspects of the report,
including but not limited to an update on recent revisions and variances to the
capital budget.

In response to Members’ questions and comments regarding how many
months the £2.8m of £6.5m full year forecast capitalised staff costs had been
recharged covered, officers responded that this was up to period 8.

In response to Members’ enquiries relating to the release of Meridian Water
housing, CliIr Erbil and officers replied that 20 units had already been
delivered, with 100 more homes due to be released between May and June
2024. These were large family homes, some of which were specially adapted
for those with disability, thus were of quality and addressed the needs in the
borough. CliIr Erbil added that lots of the council borrowing was long term,
locked in at low interest rates, and represented investments.

In response to Members’ questions regarding capital investment schemes,
officers advised that there was a 3,500 council homes building programme,
including Joyce & Snells estate regeneration; they were also working with
housing associations, building sector SMEs and faith groups on other housing
schemes. Olga Bennet highlighted educational investments, with £14m
spending forecast for this year, including building a new sixth form building in
Winchmore School. ClIr Erbil raised the value of wetlands, parks, woodlands,
and sustainable transport projects in the borough.



Page 6
FINANCE & PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL - 7.3.2024

QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE MONITORING REPORT

Sarah Gilroy introduced and highlighted the key aspects of the report,
including but not limited to: an update on key performance indicators relative
to council targets.

In response to Members queries, officers responded that metrics regarding
the satisfactory closure of MEQs was something they could look to include.
Clir Erbil added, the quality of responses to MEQs had also been raised at a
recent Overview & Scrutiny Committee and the new Head of Customer
Solutions would be looking at this. It was conveyed that councillors also had a
responsibility to close MEQs. Sarah Gilroy advised that metrics regarding
planning enforcement were tracked at departmental management meetings
and was information they could look to include. Data on obesity was tracked
by the public health team; officers could take questions back. It was said that
children living in the most deprived areas were more than twice as likely to be
obese. ClIr Erbil added that the council were dedicated to tackling this
important issue, he explained that these arguments were used when they
applied for funding for active travel such as school streets, and he highlighted
the importance of investment in education and communicating the right
information and messages through schools.

In response to Members’ questions and comments relating to educating
residents about recycling, ClIr Erbil replied that they were in talks with the
North London Waste Authority to see what more could be done. In 2022 the
council had produced an excellent leaflet which was sent to residents clearly
outlining what should be placed in each bin, but they did not have the
resources to do this as regularly as they would like. Jon Sharkey conveyed
that they had tried to mirror the information in this leaflet on the website. He
explained that they were about to start two rounds of door knocking at
addresses where bin contamination was identified as a problem and would be
providing specific/ targeted feedback. ClIr Erbil thanked officers for their hard
work on this matter.

WORK PROGRAMME 2023/24

Members noted the Finance and Performance Scrutiny Panel work
programme for 2023/24.

DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS
Members noted the dates of future meetings as set out in the agenda.

The Chair thanked Members and officers for their time and contributions and
the meeting ended at 20:23.



Page 7

London Borough of Enfield

Report Title Special education needs framework and funding
including transport costs and care packages
Report to Finance & Scrutiny Performance Panel

Date of Meeting

11t April 2024

Cabinet Member

Councillor Abdullahi

Executive Director
| Director

Tony Theodoulou, Executive Director People’s
Department. Peter Nathan Director of Education.

Report Author

Barbara Thurogood, Head of SEND, Julian Minta, Head
of Fleet & Transport Operations, Mirjan Dhamo, Head of
Service for Disabled Children

Ward(s) affected All
Classification Part 1 Public
Reason for N/A
exemption

Purpose of Report

1. To provide an update on special educational need and disabilities (SEND)

placements, budget for SEND Children’s services, care packages, transport costs,

and special needs school packages.

2. Provide details of current and projected demand for SEND places, current

provision both in-borough and out-of-borough and the related costs to the High

Needs Block.

Agenda Iltem 4




Page 8

Main Considerations for the Panel

Introduction

3. There are two different regulatory frameworks and processes for SEND and
funding to support pupils with SEND.

4. Framework Supporting Pupils with SEND

The Children and Families Act 2014 sets out the legislative framework required to
meet the needs of CYP by ensuring appropriate provision and commissioning
arrangements are in place to meet needs. Appendix A provides further information on
the legislative requirements.

The statutory legislation is supported by Code of Practice: SEND Reforms.

5. Framework for Funding Pupils with SEND

The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) funds the education of CYP. The DSG is
split into four blocks and these include:

Schools Block: funds 5 — 16 years old in mainstream primary and secondary
schools. The key change, at this point, was to restrict the number of factors
LAs could use to reflect the contextual data relating to pupils in their local
formulae.

High Needs Block (HNB) fund pupils with SEND from 0 to 25 years old, who
have EHCP and require additional support above what is normally provided
by the schools or the educational setting / institutions. The key change was
to freeze the total funding provided at 2012/13 levels for this block and
introduce a place plus approach.

Early Years Block (EYB) to fund free nursery education for pupils from 2-4
years of age in schools and private, voluntary and independent (PVI) settings
and child minders.

Central Services Schools Block (CSSB) was introduced in 2018/19 to fund
statutory services provided by the Local Authority to schools, academies and
free schools.

These blocks operate independently of each other and there is very little flexibility to
move funds from one to another.

This paper will detail both the arrangements for supporting and funding pupils
with SEND and provides an update on the current financial position.



Page 9

6. SEND Framework

The SEND Reforms and associated Code of Practice was introduced in 2015.
The Reforms introduced some significant changes and these included:
e Requirements for local authorities to support CYP from birth to 25 rather than
from 5 — 18 years old;
e Moving from Statements to Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCP) with
very little flexibility not to assess a request for an EHCP
e All requests for an EHCP assessment have to be completed within 20 weeks
e Removing the graduated response to supporting needs which was previously in
place and introducing SEND Support that required to schools to support all
pupils with SEND up to an amount of £6,000 per pupil from their own budgets
e Any support costing more than £6,000 would require an EHCP and funded
from the HNB.

7. To manage these changes, a strategic local framework was developed that outlined
how the Reforms including the extension of the age range would be managed within the
borough and not rely on expensive independent provision. The framework identified:

a) In-borough provision - Creating in-borough provision by either expanding existing
special schools or creating new schools. Whilst places in-borough are being
developed, officers are working with families of CYP to consider moving to in-
borough provision when places become available.

b) Additionally Resourced Provision (ARPs) and Special Units.- following the review of
the criteria and monitoring arrangements for hosting an ARP or a Designated Unit,
schools have been asked and shown an expression of interest to host a provision.

c) Early Intervention - A number of strands have been developed to support early
intervention and these include:

i) Invest to Save Developments: During 2020/21, EY review carried out a review of the
High Needs Block income and spend. The outcomes from the review were considered
by a High Needs Working Group made up to Schools Forum members, key
professionals, and officers. The Working Group recommended to the Forum that an
investment of £1m be agreed to develop and implement the following early intervention
and inclusion strategies:

Speech and Language Support

Autism Support

Early Years Support

Trauma Informed Practice

Inclusion Charter

Improvements to the infrastructure supporting SEN Services



Page 10

These strategies were developed, and business cases were agreed by the Schools
Forum and the Council. At the start of 2021-22 academic year, the services leading on
these strategies, recruited to the posts agreed to deliver on the strategies identified.
Therefore, 2022-23 academic year, was the first year all the strategies became fully
operational.

ii) Delivering Better Value Programme (DBV): Enfield was identified as one of 55 LAs to
be invited to engage in the DBV programme. Unlike the safety valve programme
mentioned earlier in the report, the DBV programme aimed to identify opportunities for
reducing costs rather than provide financial support to reduce the deficit. The Authority
began working with the partners engaged by the DfE to lead on DBV in Autumn 2022.
Following financial and pupil data analysis, case reviews, surveys, discussions with key
professionals, the DBV partners and officers, the following opportunities and areas of
development were identified:

» Ensure the provision identified matches and meets SENDs needs of individual

pupils
» Improving support for CYP on SEND support

These findings were considered with the DBV team and workstreams were developed
to support the grant application required to be submitted to access £1m of investment.
Appendix B summarises the workstreams that were developed.

The DfE approved the application in the first half of the Autumn term. Final confirmation
of the £1m investment and the period over which the money could be spent was
received at the end of the Autumn term.

With this agreement, officers are in the process of recruiting a Programme Manager.
The Programme manager will then lead on the progressing the various workstreams
and commissioning arrangements.

d) Post 16 - Post 16 high needs places continue to increase in line with the growth in
numbers across the borough. Work that commenced in 2020/21 by the SEN team via its
re-design has increased capacity in the discrete resources available and allocated to
the phased transfer of learners considering the transition out of school to post 16/19
settings.

Whilst the number of out of borough residential places has reduced, a large number of
independent providers have applied inflationary uplifts in the region of 7-10% to 2023/24
costs. The number of in year/late enrolments continued in the same vein as 2022/23.
Total numbers in post 16 have increased from 342 in 22/23 to 357 in 23/24.

The continued work will focus on increased diligence that Preparing for Adulthood (PfA)
objectives are the key focus of all of the education programmes supported. Focus must
also be given to annual review attendance, ensuring that intended destinations of those
learners approaching transition are given full consideration.

8. Funding Framework - When the SEND Reforms were introduced, the HNB which
funds pupils with SEND was provided on a flat cash basis with no increase to support
the SEND Reforms nor any changes in pupil numbers. This was particularly pertinent
because of the extended age range that was required to be supported.



Page 11

9. In addition, the move to EHCPs and introducing a monetary threshold as to when a
pupil may move from SEND Support to EHCP began to create a significant pressure on
the HNB. Initially, the pressure was being managed by transferring money between
blocks because this was permitted by the financial regulations. When this was not
possible, by cutting or reducing early intervention and other support provided to CYP.

10. Following feedback from a number of LAs and other national organisations, the
Department of Education (DfE) reviewed the funding arrangements for the HNB and in
2018 introduced a national funding formula (NFF) to allocate money to LAs. Some
additional funding was added to the HNB to facilitate this change. Whilst the
introduction of the NFF was welcomed, there were some concerns about the NFF and
whether:
e The funding formula fully capture the cohort of CYP that were required to be
supported
e The total funding available nationally was increased sufficiently to support the
changes but also address the inherent financial pressure already in the system
for the period from 2015 to 2018.

11. Current Position on Number of Pupils and Needs Supported
Analysis has been carried out of number of pupils with SEND and the needs has been

carried out. The Office of National Statistics data shows Enfield’s number of EHCPs and
SEND support also continues to increase as summarised in Table 1.

Table 1: Change in EHCPs and SEND Support from 2015/16 to 2022/23

3 Year
ENFIELD 2015 2016 201 2018/ 20192020/ 2021/2 202212 %
M6 M7 718 19 /20 21 2 3 Chan
ge
Total 58929 59648 59750 59621 59260 5847258 052 57745  -1.2%
Population
Pupils SEND 6483 6538 6210 = 6133 6040 5861 6008 6363 @ 8.6%
Support
0,
é’uiﬁgg 11.0% 11.0% 10.4% 10.3% 10.2% 10.0%10.0% 11.0%
Pupils

EHCP/Stateme 1,350 1,444 1,659 1,8002,230 2,491 2,883 3,106 24 7%
nts

%

EHCP/Stateme 2.3% 2.4% 2.8% 3.0% 3.8% 4.3% 5% 5.4%

nts

12.Further local analysis of the numbers of ECHP assessments completed within 20
weeks showed that in 2022 Enfield completed 69.9% compared to 59.9% nationally.



Page 12

13.The available data for 2023 continues to indicate that the number of EHCPs
assessed has risen again both nationally by 9% and in Enfield 7.75% from the previous
year. The key point to note is, unlike previous years, the increase for Enfield is lower
than the national rise.

14. Furthermore, there has been a significant improvement in the numbers of ECHP
assessments completed within 20 weeks showed that in 2022 Enfield completed 90.7%
compared to 49.1% nationally.

15.There is a range of needs that are required to be supported with each type requiring
different type of support. An analysis of the most common type of need supported
showed for:

a) EHCPs - Both nationally and locally the most common primary needs continue to be
Autism and Speech and Language. This is then followed by Social, Emotional & Mental
Health and Moderate Learning Difficulties.

b) SEND Support - Both national and locally the most common primary needs continue
to be Speech and Language and Social, Emotional & Mental Health. This is then
followed by Moderate Learning Difficulties and Autism.

16. Current Financial Position of the HNB

The 2024/25 funding allocations were published last December 2023. Enfield’s basic
DSG allocation was confirmed as £78.85m, an increase of £2.41m equating to 3.19%.
However, the increase includes the changes in pupil numbers as at October 2023, so
the actual funding change is much lower circa 3% and it does not allow for existing
commitments nor the continuing rising demand for support.

17.This level of increase is reflective of the funding provided for the HNB to support
pupils with SEND. Table and Graph 2: summarise change in income and expenditure
since the introduction of the SEND Reforms in 2015/16. The graph shows there has
been increased investment since 2019 however the investment has been insufficient to
address the rising demand and increasing costs due to inflationary pressures in order to
close the gap between income and expenditure.

Table and Graph 2: Summary of In-year Funding and Expenditure

- Actual/
xpenditure]
£ms £ms
2015/16] 31.5 41.8 -10.3 -33%
2016/17) 32.1 46.3 -14.2 -47%
2017/18] 41.5 46.2 -4.7 -11%
2018/19] 45.8 46.3 -0.4 -1%
2019/20] 46.8 53.8 -7 -15%




Page 13

2020/21] 54.8 60.2 -5.4 -10%
2021/22] 60.5 65.3 -4.9 -8%
2022/23| 68 72 -2.96 -6%
2023/24] 75.6 81 -5.4 -4%

* Highlighted text is indicative projections for 2023/24

High Needs Block Budget and Spend

2023/ e ——=,
P 2022/ 3 ™
8 =~
$ 2021/22
B 2020/ 2] ™
§ 2019/ 20 |y
£
avlptEcny |
2017/18 |

0 20 40 60 80 100
£ms

M Actual/ Forecast Expenditure £ms M Original Allocation

18.The DfE collect and publish information from all LAs on their spending plans for the
DSG at the start of each financial year. The published data 2023/24 returns indicated
approximately two thirds of the 152 English LAs had planned to bring forward into
2023/24 a DSG deficit and others a balance of zero or above. Table 3 compares Enfield
nationally and with Outer London LAs.

Table 3: Summary of Balances Brought Forward for 2021/22 and 2022/23

Max Min E:::ila‘s No
Position on| 2022/23 2023/24 into into bein in
Balances Total £s Total £s 2022/2| 2022/23 . g Def
highest . .
3 £s £s . icit
deficit)
Enfield 12,617,785 |15,500,000
:"f;;;’"a' £1151m  [£1164m  [£36m  [£118m 29 101
Outer
London £143m £95m £9m |£25m 2 13
(19)




Page 14

19. The change in the total deficit for outer London authorities is because of the
additional support received by authorities from the DfE’s Safety Valve programme that
provided financial support to LAs reporting significant HNB deficits, Table 4 provides

information from three other London authorities that received additional financial

support.

Table 4: Deficit reported by 3 London Authorities on their spending plan

Local Authority Start of Start of

2022/23 2023/24
Croydon £21.2m £15.4m
Hillingdon £23.3m £15.1m
Kingston upon £9.8m £4.8m
Thames

20.As will be seen Enfield’s accumulative deficit had increased to £15.5m by 31 March
2023 and was reported to be 29th highest deficit compared to all LAs because of the
effect of the support provided by the safety valve programme to some authorities

21 Specialist Provision within Enfield — Overview

Individual CYP will have different types and level of needs. In general terms, the lowest
level of need is those CYP in mainstream schools (5-18) requiring support up to £6,000
per annum and the highest level would be those CYP with very complex needs and

requiring a specialist place provided by a specific setting and the cost of which can vary
from £50,000 to £150,000 per annum per placement. Table 5 details the different types
of provision and how they advance from support in a mainstream school to a more

specialist and complex provision.

Table 5: Types of Provision to meeting varying level of need

Type of Provision

Managemen

¢ Delivery

Funding Arrangements

. Up to £6,000 by

gﬂ':;cisstir:: m Mainstream Schools school* 1 EHCP
- Top up by LA
intervention e.g. Dependent upon Commissioning arrangements Lump sum

Nurture Groups

1 x Mainstream schools: required to meet support from their delegated budget. Local arrangements
provide additional money to schools with above average number of pupils with EHCPs.



Page 15

Mainstream ARP Mainstream Schools Agreed Place Funding Elgce e

Ma|n§trean.1 Mainstream Schools Agreed Place Funding Elace Plus

Special Unit

Virtual School Dependent upon Commissioning arrangements Lump sum

Spt_eclal ARP in Special & Mainstream Agreed Place Funding| Place Plus

mainstream Schools

Satellite Special Schools Agreed Place Funding| Place Plus

Special - In- Special Schools Agreed Place Funding| Place Plus

borough

Special - Local EHCP

Independent / . Provider Agreed Place Funding| requireme
Authority

Outborough nts

22. SEND Provision - Initially, it would be preferable for the CYP to remain in their
school setting without recourse to the EHCP through the various early intervention
support that has been developed as part of the strategic plan to manage the High
Needs deficits. Whilst there is an ongoing cost for the teams delivering the service, it is
a cost known and manageable and in the long term affords value for money. This is
because any CYP with an EHCP and placed in a specialist provision are going to
require support the length of time they are in education. If they are assessed for the
EHCP plan at age 5, then the extreme case would be that support is required until the
age of 25. So, the EHCP could be in place for 20 years.

23. The aim of the early intervention is to support emerging needs and for a number of
CYP, to negate the need for an EHCP or delay it for 2 to 3 years. Table 6 details the
early interventions services.

Table 6 details the early interventions services

Category of Needs Delivery Delivery Financial
Need Supported Partner Allocation
Provide
guidance,
Enfield s h advice and
Communication peech, training to )
. communication Enfield
Advisory and Language schools, Council £610,000
Support Support parents and
Services other key
professionals.
Targeted

2 x *Places funded as follows: £6,000 if pupil on school roll or £10,000 base funding for each place and then an
agreed amount of top up for the number of pupils on roll.



Page 16

support to
individual
CYPs
support to
groups of
CYPs

Contracts for
Speech,
Language,
occupation
therapists

Speech,
communication
and Language
Support

Support to
individual
CYPs

Health

£1,404,708

Enfield
Advisory
Service for
Autism

Support for
autism
includes
cognition &
learning and
communication
and interaction

Provide
training to
schools,
parents and
other key
professionals.
Targeted
support to
individual
CYPs
support to
groups of
CYPs

Enfield
Special
School

£641,000

Children's
Centre

Early Help for
parents and
their children

Provide
guidance,
advice and
training to
schools,
parents and
other key
professionals.

Enfield
Mainstream
School

£165,934

Behaviour
Support

Social,
emotional and
mental health

Provide
guidance,
advice and
training to
schools,
parents and
other key
professionals.
Co-ordinate
mentoring and
other activities
to support
CYP

Enfield
Council

£1,922,775




Nurture Groups

Social,
emotional and
mental health

Page 17

Schools
commissioned
to host
Nurture
Groups for
children with
social,
emotional and
developmental
needs
Provide
guidance,
advice and
training to
schools,
parents and
other key
professionals.

Enfield
Council

£866,000

Contracts for
Physical and
Sensory
Disability
Support

Visual and
Hearing
Impairment

Provide
specialist
support to
CYP with
visual and
hearing
impairment to
access
curriculum
and manage
day to day
activities.

Various

£452,956

Contract:
Medical and
Home Tuition

Support for
pupils in North
Middlesex
Hospital or at
home due to
illness

Enfield
Special
School

£464,000

Advocacy
Support for
Parents

Advisory
Service

Provide
advice and
guidance to
parents

SENDIASS

£115,000

24 .In considering the different level of provision required to meet varying needs of pupils
with SEND, the Authority is working with individual schools to agree how they may
extend their support for CYP with high level of SEND. In doing this, a focus for the
Authority has been continuing to increase in-borough special provision by expanding
and creating new places for CYP with SEND as part of the school expansion



Page 18

programme, thus reducing the use of independent placements. The aim has been to
increase capacity in special schools and educational establishments for some of the

pupils with the most acute special needs.

25. Members sought some information on the education packages and their costs.
Table 7 provides a summary of the number and range of costs associated with provision

detailed in Table 6.

Table 7 Types of Provision to meeting varying level of need

Type of Provision Numbers Cost - HNB Cost to
2020/21 2023/24 Schools
Mainstream From £2,500 to
Provision £13,000 £6,000
. From £12,140 -
Mainstream ARP 118 192 £14.772 £4.000
. . In
Mainstream Speclal | 5451100 | 68 £11,990 £4,000
Unit
- 20
Special ARP in 20 26 £17,088
mainstream
Special - Maintained £19,910 -
inc. satellite 860 1,156 £35,000
Special -
Independent / From £45,000
Outborough 245 207 to £150,000

excluding Post 16

26. Post 16 - Funding for Post 16 comes from the High Needs Block which is
administered by the Education, and Skills Funding Agency. (ESFA). The Local
Authority must commission the places from the colleges before the end of October in
each academic year and provide a return to the ESFA who in turn passport the place
funding to colleges from the Local Authorities DSG.

27. Colleges are funded on what is called a lagged learner number, this refers to
historical data for each academic year. For example, if there are one hundred students
in college in 2020, in 2021 the college will be funded for the one hundred students. If in
the 2021 academic year the college has one hundred and ten students, they will be
funded for these in the 2022 academic year.

28. Colleges receive funding in Elements, the same as schools. Element 1, £4,542, to
£4.642. Element 2, £6000-£10,000 per place and Element 3 top up depending on need.
All Element 3 funding is negotiated and based on the provision as set out in section

E&F of the EHCP.



Page 19

29. Young people are required through Raising of the Participation Age to attend
education, employment, or training. In the post sixteen sector, young people make
choices based on their aspirations. Courses are usually two to three years in duration.

30. Some colleges, such as Barnet and Southgate College, Hertford Regional and
Waltham Forest have specialist provision for young people where discrete provision in
small groups are provided for the more complex young people, who may transition into
adult social care.

31.Supported Internships are available in some FE settings and in Special schools who
have a designation for young people up to the age of nineteen.

32.In 2020/21, there were 302 placements across 26 providers at a cost of £2.5m and
this increased to 345 placements across 19 providers at a cost of £3.9m.

33. Residential Placements - Separately, a number of CYP with very complex SEND
needs will be placed in a residential setting because there is no alternative provision
These placements can be very costly and there is always questions as to what
proportion should be charged to education, health and social care. These are some of
the most expensive placements and costs can range from £50,000 to £250,000.

34. Future Demand and Mitigations - The data included in this paper shows that there
is still a rising demand for EHCPs both nationally and in Enfield. There is no individual
explanation as to why this is the case, apart from advances in medical technology.
Since Covid 19, the number of requests at early years has increased, for those who
missed nursery education and there has been a marked increase in Social, emotional
and mental health identification.

35. The Authority with its SEND partners continues to develop the strategies outlined
earlier in this report as well as begin to work on the DBV programme, which should yield
some mitigation in the next 2 -3 years. In addition, in 2023, the DfE introduced a new
initiative called the Change Programme Partnership.

36. Change Programme Partnership

The Change Programme is a response to the SEND Green Paper published in March
2023. This is one of the initiatives following extensive engagement with around 6,000
participants from surveys and 175 events set up to gather the views of children, young
people and their families and all relevant stakeholders in an attempt to tackle the
recognised “brokenness” with the SEND system. The aim is to have a coherent plan to
transform the SEND and Alternative Provision systems and make it sustainable over the
long term.

37. Thirty-one LAs including Enfield have been selected to pilot key SEND reforms
through a £70 million “change programme”. Barnet Local Authority are the lead in
London supported by Enfield, Camden and Islington.



Page 20

The programme in the first instance will review, a national EHCP, a Data dashboard, a
Local Area Improvement Plan (LAIP) and a schools list to support parents to make
informed decisions on where they want their child or young person to attend. A review
of statutory SEN panels and SEND Boards will take place across all boroughs to ensure
consistency in decision making.

38. There will be a new Alternative Provision approach, which will see a three stranded
model of targeted support, time-limited placements and transitional placements which
will be support by a task force manager with 7 support workers including, Mental Health
Therapist, Educational Psychologist, Speech and Language Therapist, Social worker or
family support worker, post 16 transition coach, Youth Worker and Youth Justice
Worker.

39.Conclusions

The Authority is working diligently to make certain that services are run efficiently to
meet the needs of CYP and their families. Special Schools have and continue to be
expanded to reduce the numbers of CYPs being placed in independent provision with a
new special school being commissioned as part of the DfE expansion programme. The
number of ARPS and Units have been increased to make ensure there is local provision
in place for our CYP in line with the Children and Families Act 2014 legislation and in
line with Enfield’s SEND Strategy.

40. Early intervention to support CYP with lower level of needs such as SEN support
has increased to reduce the number of EHCPs going forward and to meet need at the
right time before needs escalate. This work will be further supported by the DBV
programme by further developing innovative practise review pathways available for
CYPs and support schools and parents. All these programmes and development
should lead to a reduction in the number of existing EHCPs where CYP have made
significant progress and begin to address the HNB deficit.

41. At regional or national level, there continues to be emphasis to develop further
efficiencies within the SEND system with Enfield engaging in:

¢ A North Central London review of speech and language that aims to improve
current provision by identifying more efficient and effective delivery methods.

e The Change Programme Partnership aims to provide a consistent approach in
meeting the needs of CYP with SEND nationally and remove regional variations
in the decision-making process for allocating support. It is envisaged the
Change Programme may lead to national standards to provide a more
consistent approach for supporting the needs of CYP to meet their educational
outcomes and life chances.

SEND TRANSPORT



Page 21

42 SEND Transport

Transport provision requirements continues to grow year on year with this year’s
total numbers of pupils reaching 1405, double what the numbers were in
2016/17. Over the last few years, we have made significant impact on the budget
mitigation by concentrating on cost saving measures wherever possible, these
include, independent travel training, Personal Travel Budgets and movement of
pupils form costly out of borough placements to in-borough provisions.

43.In-Borough/Out of Borough Transport:

With the increase in in-borough education establishments and places we have
successfully been able to reduce the number of pupils that require out of borough
transportation. The budget impact savings of this, although significant,

does not correspond in line with the movement and number of pupils in-borough
and out of borough. We are now servicing a significantly larger number of
education establishments as the need for places has resulted in many schools
setting up satellite operations. The direct result of this is although we are

now covering less out of borough transport runs, we are having to add additional
routes to service the extra establishments.

44.Independent Travel training

By engaging with schools, we have managed to significantly increase the number
of pupils trained every year to be independent in their travel arrangements to and
from education establishments. From single figure numbers in 2018, to over 40
pupils this year

45.Personal Travel Budgets:

Personal Travel budgets are the second most cost-effective method of transport,
providing parents a weekly budget which they use to make their own travel
arrangements. Numbers of pupils receiving travel budgets have risen form 98 in
2018 to 425 this year.

46. Application Rejections:

By applying the transport policy in a robust and consistent way, the number of
transport applications rejections has risen significantly, with over double the
number of applications rejected this year compared with 2017/18

47 Single Occupancy Routes

Single occupancy Routes the costliest forms of transport to the service. Whilst

we endeavour to always place pupils on a multiple transport route quite often
there are circumstances that are completely out of our control that deem it



Page 22

necessary for the pupils to be transported on their own.

Reasons for adopting this method are varied but can include behavioural issues, pupils
with extremely complex medical needs, pupils being the only person being collected
from or transported to a specific location, or pupils that we are responsible for providing
the education and transport provision for as they are registered in the borough but are
actually located or have been relocated out of the borough for specific reasons. In all
these cases the circumstances are out of their control off the transport section and as
the service we provide is statutory we must fulfil the transport requirement.

Single occupancy travel continues to rise year on year and is now almost three times
the number of pupils being transported this year compared with what it was in 2017/18

Full Detail is set out below:

In Borough Pupil Numbers
(Transport)
In In In Bo?(l)ug Bo?(l)ug In In
Period Borough | Borough | Borough h h Borough | Borough
2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20 202021 | 202122 2022/23 | 2023/24
April 514 521 561 701 741 780 752
| May 508 528 555 701 733 783 760
| June 510 536 552 701 754 782 756
| July 506 531 547 701 753 773 717
August 506 531 547 701 753 773 717
September 524 528 623 659 778 739 701
October 528 534 667 698 779 751 711
November 530 550 670 711 785 754 718
December 530 548 687 713 788 767 711
| January 531 555 686 723 780 762 711
February 532 558 686 731 773 760 711
March 532 555 693 741 780 762 717




Page 23

Out of Borough Pupil Numbers

(Transport)
Out of Out of Out of ];)0 l::)zig‘ 12) 1;:)3; Out of Out of
Period Borough | Borough | Borough h h Borough | Borough
2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20 202021 | 202121 2022/23 2023/24
April 158 173 191 202 189 184 178
| May 156 173 193 202 180 182 180
June 156 179 195 203 177 188 191
July 155 179 196 203 179 178 187
August 155 179 196 203 181 178 187
September 161 173 186 173 175 170 191
October 162 174 193 183 181 166 198
November 162 184 203 188 187 176 205
December 162 179 198 191 188 176 206
January 163 184 197 179 181 176 208
| February 163 186 197 184 182 178 210
March 163 189 201 189 184 180 213
Personal Travel Budgets (Total) Pupil Numbers
(In & Out of Borough)
Period PTB PTB PTB PTB PTB PTB PTB
2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 2023/24
April 63 90 94 91 171 240 348
| May 63 91 90 91 180 246 354
| June 65 81 92 98 183 235 354
July 64 81 92 93 185 227 355
August 67 64 92 92 181 224 337
September 67 83 79 128 180 298 398
October 69 88 83 134 192 301 414




Page 24

November 71 91 85 144 215 313 414
December 72 85 85 163 212 300 408
January 79 91 97 160 223 331 421
| February 92 93 98 161 231 339 425
| March 98 89 99 166 218 341 424
Independent Travel Training Pupil Numbers
Period —— L — 2(1)5(};2 2(I)§;r/2 L p—
2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20 1 ) 2022/23 2023/24
Agril 0 3 5 0 5 8 8
May 2 6 9 0 15 18 10
June 5 7 9 0 26 28 16
July 6 10 17 0 38 33 15
August 6 10 17 4 39 33 0
Segtember 8 14 17 6 45 42 10
October 8 14 19 9 55 54 8
November 8 14 23 15 67 61 7
December 8 14 24 16 73 69 19
January 9 14 26 16 84 81 27
| February 9 14 27 16 90 89 42
March 9 15 27 16 102 104 34
Applications Rejection Numbers
Rejectio | Rejectio | Rejectio R'ejec Rejectio Reiecti Rejectio
Period ns ns ns thoms ns cjection ns
2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20 2(;210/ 2021/22 Deln e 2023/24
April 1 1 7 0 0 1 9
May 7 11 9 1 6 7 15




Page 25

| June 13 21 12 5 13 8 18
| July 27 26 20 10 18 11 32
August 36 32 25 15 23 13 50
September 40 41 34 28 28 16 63
October 41 48 37 32 31 30 85
November 43 51 42 33 32 44 94
December 44 55 43 35 36 55 102
| January 53 64 43 35 50 66 113
| February 57 67 43 38 53 77 124
March 57 67 45 39 57 88 135
Single Occupancy Routes
Period 2019/20 | 2020/21 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24
April 33 106 82 83
| May 33 101 83 83
| June 33 99 87 85
| July 34 103 73 85
August 33 99 73 85
September 33 71 78 78
October 34 73 78 78
November 35 77 81 80
December 35 73 83 79
January 35 75 85 79
| February 35 77 85
March 36 82 88
Budget Position:
%age
FY Outturn Chafge
2016/17 £4,863,973
2017/18 £5,663,558 16%
2018/19 £6,221,671 10%
2019/20 £8,213,884 32%




Page 26

Includes £355,645.06 Covid
0 2
2020/21 £8,277,967 1% finding
Includes £1,097,922.58 Covid and
£9,882,625 19% | Contain outbreak management
2021/22 fundings
2022/23 £11,694,801 18%
2023/24 £13,000,760 11% Estimated
Actual Spend
£14,000,000
£12,000,000
£10,000,000
£8,000,000
£6,000,000
£4,000,000
£2,000,000
£0
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 202021 201/22 2022/23
o SE 105 ] e S 15
Average Costs Per Individual Pupil
Outturn Total Average Cost Per
Outturn FY £000 Passenge Passenger Per
> SSengers Annum £000s
£4.863,973 | 2016/17 £4.864 694 £7.0
£5,663,558 | 2017/18 £5,664 753 £7.5
£6,221,671 | 2018/19 £6,222 805 £7.7
£8,213,884 | 2019/20 £8.214 909 £9.0
£8,277,967 | 2020/21 £8.278 1,025 £8.1
£9,882.625 | 2021/22 £9.883 1,146 £8.6




£11,694,801 | 2022/23 £11,695 1,226 £9.5

Page 27

£13,000,760 | 2023/24 £13,001 1,405 £93

Actual Budget Costs:

2023/24
Forecast
In House £2.544,832
External £9.454,949
PTBS
and ITT £1,569,123
Income -£568,144
Total £13,000,760
NB:

To help support the service budget, additional income is generated by using the vehicles for

school swimming transport.

Joint Service for Disabled Children

. The Joint Service for disabled children provides services to disabled children in

the borough. There are approximately one thousand children open to the service
at any one given time. The service provides afterschool club Monday to Friday
and playschemes Saturday, Sundays and school holidays. We also have two
social work teams providing statutory interventions to those families that need
help and protection.

. In the last two years we have seen a significant increase in requests for support

from parents and carers.

. We have seen a slight reduction over the last two years in the age the parents

and carers are asking for support from 9.6- 9.0. This will put additional pressure
on the service as their needs will increase as they grow.

. Reasons for the increased demand for statutory service

Families being aware of the services and requesting for support.
Continuous rise in the number of children with EHCP’s (Education, Health and
Care Plans).



Page 28

Change in eligibility criteria following legal challenge in April 2022.

Parental fatigue, parent and carers cannot deal with the behaviour that
challenges.

Social and economics family condition are contributing to this as parents are less
available to communicate and engage with their children which is impacting their
development.

Increase in the complexity and intensity of behaviour that challenges, particularly
during the teenage years.

Currently there are 25 children where we are looking for appropriate education
setting to meet the needs of the child and 32 children on a reduced timetable
open to social care. This has resulted in additional support being requested to
social care.

The impact of covid closures, where children that witnessed the lockdown and
did not attend school are now experiencing developmental challenges,
particularly neurodiverse children at all ages.

Transfer in from other boroughs, due to housing situation in their local boroughs.
Improvement in medical care and facilities.



5. Financial Impact

a.

Table 3 Breakdown of the care packages and financial impact

Number of CWD in receipt of Short Breaks

Scheme 201718 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-2022 2022-2023 | 2023-2024
313 435 561
210 224
196 139% (122) | 29 % (126)
Short Break Grant 166 118.07%(30) | 17.1% (14) 16.6%(14) | 139.7%(89)
77 103 143 167
95 131 16.8 % (24)
Direct payment 60 128.3% (17) | 123.37% (18) | 18.4% (8) | 129.7% (28) 19.1%(12)
Directly
commissioned 57 75 61 75 145 181
Homecare
77 125.9% (22) | 131.5% (20) | [18.6% (6) [ 122.9% (6) | 193.3% (70) | 24.8 % (36)
Total Cost £1,010,239 |£1,357,609 | £1,525,872 | £2,130,881 | £3,378,900
b. Table 4, number of complex children requiring high level of support
Number of Children with Complex Care Packages
Year 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024
Numbers 4 4 3 12
Costs 249273 76115 169817 662779

6¢ abed



6. Complex needs children and young people looked after by the local authority

6 .1 The number of children with complex needs has increased steadily in the last 5 years . The market has also
changed where placement cost more and require additional support to manage the behaviour that challenges.

6.2 Table 5- Number of complex looked after children and spending

0€ abed

No of LAC
No of LAC | in 2 way or | No paid No paid | Total paid Total paid Total placement Average
(as of 31st | 3 way by by by Social by Total paid | cost for CIP cost per
March) placments | Education | Health | Care Education | by Health | placements week
2017-
18 338 22 15 22 £1,209,131 | £955,977 | £1,047,435 £3,212,543 £3,801
2018-
19 374 19 14 24 £1,010,392 | £965,990 | £1,147,013 £3,123,395 £3,875
2019-
20 376 20 11 20 £1,050,974 | £379,934 | £1,069,695 £2,500,603 £4,233
2020-
21 375 21 16 23 £1,241,411 | £1,063,216 | £1,782,194 £4,086,821 £6,131
2021-
22 380 32 14 32 £3,797,266 | £1,238,980 | £3,779,392 £8,815,638 £5,224
2022-
23 398 30 10 29 £3,230,880 | £1,183,770 | £3,099,066 £7,513,716 £5,329
2023-
24 419 43 13 42 £2,970,316 | £936,811 | £2,916,398 £6,823,525 £6,228




Page 31

7. Case studies

7.1 RG 15 year old boy.

- Presenting issue/concern/reason for our input

R’s behaviour was at a level that his mother and nan could not care for him. He
used to hit them and be very dysregulated at home. There was at time that he
was getting excluded from school.

- What has worked well

R was presented at the Dynmic Support Register where a multi-disciplinary
approach was agreed and support was provided by all agencies involved:

- Increase of staffing support at school.

- Increase of support at home.

- Development of a positive behaviour support plan by Transforming Care
Partnership Programme.

- Attending Cheviots playscheme.

- What outcomes have been achieved/improved as a result of our input

- R is getting stimulation from his carers and his school.
- Incidentsh hitting his mother and his carers are reduced at a

significant level.
- R is not at risk of becoming looked after. He has remained and accessing
local community.

7.2 LF 16 years old

Presenting issue/concern/reason for our input

The list of diagnoses for L is long and includes an abnormality the part of his
brain responsible for movement, however, the underlying reason for the
deterioration in his health is currently unknown and has been classified by GOSH
as SWAN (Syndrome Without A Name). Known genetic conditions have been
ruled out, leaving currently unknown or very rare genetic causes. As there is no
treatment or diagnosis for L, the focus has moved to addressing and managing
each of his complex needs. This leaves the parents without a diagnosis,
prognosis, or treatment to try to stall or reverse the deterioration; the uncertainty
around L's future has led to a great deal of stress for his parents. He has a fitted
with a PEG which has been recently changed with a button to assist maintaining
his weight and nutrition.

The parents were struggling to manage and contain L’s behaviour at home and in
the community. L was presenting with very challenging behaviour untriggered
towards the parents, and this included hitting and kicking, pushing, being
threatening, grabbing hair, throwing objects at people, smashing household
items, slamming doors, refusing medication, stabbing with pencils, throwing food
and plates, tearing up books, damaging sensory lights and scratching windows.



Page 32

The parents were sustaining bruises regularly especial father who most times
directed the aggression. At times, the aggression was being extended attacking
carers throwing flower vases. This resulted in the father asking the carers to
leave the home for their own safety hence respite not serving the intended
purpose. During appointments with professionals the L would also direct his
aggression this included CAMHS consultants and social worker visit.

Further concerns have been on how to keep L safe as he could himself in the
process unable to regulate his emotions. In November 2023 escalation of L
aggression and resulted in hospital attendance cutting his hand by hitting the
glass door at the family home. L displayed aggressive behaviour daily, often 2-3
times a day lasting for between 30- 60 minutes. Travelling was reported very
challenging as he is very unsettled and with aggressive outburst.

The parents were asking for L to be placed into a residential placement (boarding
school) 38 weeks, support with trained mental health or learning disability nurses
to manage the risk

The school, St Elizabeth also reports behavioural challenges, however, were
able to manage this due to the ratio of support and different workers. The school
shared incidents in class of L not engaging in activities and throwing items when
heightened.

What has worked well

There has been good partnership with all multi-disciplinary teams. This includes,
CHC, TCAP’s, STAY, GOSH, Occupational Therapist, School, SEN, Cheviots.
There has been regular MDT Meetings, sharing information and managing the
risk.

There has been regular S/W visit and partnership working with the L and the
parents offering support and advice

There have been joint working visits with STAY and S/W assisting with strategies
for the parents

Respite and additional hours totally to 76 hours per week 2:1 support.

Cheviots Playscheme additional hours provided during school holiday and
weekends where Ls enjoys going

There have been professionals regularly visiting in the home for support include
TCAPs parenting work / PBS Plan and Caring Agency providing respite

What outcomes have been achieved/improved as a result of our input

L’s behaviour has significant improved, and he is not presenting with the
challenges previously exhibited.

With support from health, L medication was reviewed, and this has supported L
to regulate his emotions. He is also taking his medication which had previously
refused triggering the episodes of aggression.

L remains in the care of his parents and positive relationship observed.

L’s relationships at school with peers have improved.

L is seen happy at home and has trusting relationship with professionals
Parents report happy, and better mental health as they previously reported
breaking down.

L enjoys seeing carers playing, going in the community and this provides respite
to the parents



Page 33

L enjoys attending Cheviot Playscheme where he interacts with other children
and improves his social skills outside school

8. Financial Impact

8.1 The total cost of the care packages for the two case examples is £180k,
which produces a saving of £444k per year, assuming that if both these
children were looked after children and their placement costing £6k per week.
8.2 JSDC through a multi-disciplinary approach has prevented 5 other young
people from becoming look after, which has contributed in reduce spend of about
£1.2 million a year.

9. Control measures

9.1 There is fortnightly panel to review all the care packages provided to

families to ensure that provides value for money and meets assessed
needs. Care packages are agreed with a clear end date.

9.2 Work closely with ICB to increase health contributions.
9.3 Monthly scrutiny of the packages at High Cost Panel and Complex Needs

Panel.

9.4 Provide support to parents, carers and foster carers through Empowering

Parent and Networks in Enfield by:

= Training parents in positive behaviour support approach
(prevent).

= Provide out of hours services specially to disabled children
and young people to prevent breakdown (intervene to
minimise crisis).

= Offer respite and afterschool club (respite).

Relevance to Council Plans and Strategies

1

This overview will contribute to the Council’s strategies and programmes
for supporting communities through the delivery of education services to
the benefit of the community.

Safe, Healthy and Confident communities where we can care for and
educate our children and young people (CYP) locally in a setting or
environment that is right for them.

Sufficiency planning ensures that the council and local area can meet the
needs of Enfield’s CYP.

An Economy that works for everyone by providing post 14 education
opportunities that lead to employment.

The provision of good quality schools and buildings helps to ensure stable



Page 34

strong community enhancing skills and connecting local people to
opportunities.

Report Author: Barbara Thurogood/Sangeeta Brown
Head of SEND/Education Resources Manager
barbara.thurogood@enfield.gov.uk
0208-3795492

Appendices
Appendix 1
SEN LEGISLATION

1. ltis necessary to consider the legislation that is pertinent to decisions
around commissioning and SEND School placements both in and out of
borough. The legislative process is what underpins much of the decision
making around SEND and determines the decision that the SEN team
make.

2. SEN legislation is governed by the Children and Families Act 2014, The
SEN Regulations 2014, The Special Educational Needs (Personal
Budgets) Regulations 2014, Equality Act 2010 and the SEND Code of
Practice 2015.

3. EHCPs should only be issued for the most complex needs from the age of
0 up to 25 where education will be additional to or different from that made
generally for other children of the same age.

SEN Legislation for Placements

4. Itis important to understand that the current SEND legislation enables
parental choice of education establishment wherever that is
geographically located. The Local Authority has limited recourse to refuse
parental choices and must act in accordance with the law.

5 The SEN Service is legally required to consult with parental choice of education
under the Children and Families Act 2014, S19 (a) (b)(c)(d). This means the LA
needs to have regard to :

(a) the views, wishes and feelings of the child and his or her parent, or the young
person;

(b)the importance of the child and his or her parent, or the young person,
participating as fully as possible in decisions relating to the exercise of the
function concerned,;



Page 35

(c)the importance of the child and his or her parent, or the young person, being
provided with the information and support necessary to enable participation in
those decisions;

(d)the need to support the child and his or her parent, or the young person, in
order to facilitate the development of the child or young person and to help him or
her achieve the best possible educational and other outcomes.

6. This is communicated in the SEND Code of Practice, (section 8.78) where the
Local Authority must consider:

The child’s parent or the young person has the right to request a particular
school, college, or other institution of the following type to be named in their EHC
plan:
e maintained nursery school
¢ maintained school and any form of academy or free school
(mainstream or special)
¢ non-maintained special school
e further education or sixth form college
e independent school or independent specialist colleges (where they
have been approved for this purpose by the Secretary of State and
published in a list available to all parents and young people)

7 The only reason the local authority can refuse the request is if:
o The setting is unsuitable for the age, ability, aptitude, or special
educational needs (“SEN”) of the child or young person; or
« The attendance of the child or young person would be incompatible
with the provision of efficient education for others; or
e The attendance of the child or young person would be incompatible
with the efficient use of resources.

The LA has to prove that at least one of these conditions applies in order to
dislodge the parent or young person’s preference.This refusal is based on the
consultation response from education settings and where the setting cannot
demonstrate any of the three bullets in section (12 of this report) the Local
Authority will name a setting in Section | of the EHCP. This creates tension
between education settings, the LA and with parents.

8.Parents can then appeal to the First Tier Tribunal if they consider that their
parental preference has not been complied with in line with the legislation. The
Local Authority will then set out their reasoning and the Judge will make a legally
binding decision on the appropriateness of the placement.

9, Joint Commissioning arrangements - The local authority has a duty to lead
on the joint commissioning arrangements and set out its interventions of support
for pupils with SEND, with or without an EHCP, in line with the legislation
supporting the joint commissioning arrangements as set out in section 3 of the
Code of Practice.Section 3.9 of the Code of Practice states the LA must co-
ordinate the acquisition of provision through Joint commissioning arrangements.
This is where provision is provided with SEND partners such as Health and
Social Care. This provision must cover the services for 0-25-year-old children
and young people with SEND, both with and without EHC plans.



Page 36

10 The Code of Practice states services will include specialist support and
therapies, such as clinical treatments and deliveries of medications, speech and
language therapy, assistive technology, personal care (or access to it), Child and
Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) support, occupational
therapy,rehabilitation training, physiotherapy, a range of nursing support,
specialist equipment, wheelchairs and continence supplies and also emergency
provision.

11 They could include highly specialist services needed by only a small number
of children, for instance children with severe learning disabilities or who require
services which are commissioned centrally by NHS England (for example some
augmentative and alternative communication systems, or health provision for
children and young people in the secure estate or secure colleges).

12 In section 3.10, Local authorities, NHS England and their partner ICBs must

make arrangements for agreeing the education, health and social care provision
reasonably required by local children and young people with SEN or disabilities

and those that require emergency provision, through escalated mental health or
sustained injuries.

Appendix B

DELIVERING BETTER VALUE - WORKSTREAMS

1. Review the Early Years offer

The introduction of a new SEN support pathway for early years SEND children
will mean that EHCPs will no longer be necessary for needs to be met. This



Page 37

change will result in children receiving more timely and appropriate support. It is
expected that by 2024/25, the number of Early Years EHCPs will decrease by 5-
10%.

2. Review EHCPs in Primary, Secondary and Post 16.

The SEN Service will support education settings to ensure best value is being
achieved by reviewing EHCPs. SEND specialist staff will visit setting to support
the implementation of specialist provision and to help ensure that needs are meet
and outcomes are achieved. Step down opportunities will be applied as well as
system changes.

3. Review of Speech and Language pathways

The existing speech and language pathways will be expanded to allow children
to access Speech and Language Therapy without an EHCP. This is currently not
available in Enfield, and it is anticipated that this expansion will significantly
reduce the number of EHCPs that will need to be issued and will address need
more promptly.

4. An Enfield wide Transition strategy will be established to improve
support to children moving to their next phases of education. There will
be a stronger focus on proactive transition planning and interventions,
we aim to minimise the necessity for EHCPs for transition phases. This
not only streamlines the administrative burden but also allows us to
target resources more efficiently.

5. Explore Atrtificial Intelligence (Al)/ Assisted Technology (AT)
opportunities and Software Applications to support children and young
people to progress and develop focused activity and independent skills.
The programme will consider efficiency savings with industry experts,
and it is hoped that AI/AT will be able to provide personalised learning
experiences differentiated to each learner’s needs. This reduces the
need for one-on-one teacher or teaching assistant interventions, as
learners can receive customised support through technology.

6. Due to the demands in post 16, it is imperative that needs are managed
effectively with partners, this includes adult social care, education and
health provision with the aim to implement a hybrid offer of support that
is meaningful and does not mean a perpetual repetition of learning at the
same level for the nine years of post-sixteen education. Therefore, a
hybrid offer will be created which incorporates pre-entry education,
independent living skills and adult social care support. This will mean
that Young People will access appropriate support through education
and care and be better prepared for adulthood.



This page is intentionally left blank



FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL WORK PROGRAMME

Date of Topic Report Author | Lead Executive Reason for proposal/ Other
meeting Members Director/ Scope committee/
Director Cabinet/Council
approvals?
12 June Work Programme
2023 Planning
31 October | P-card payment Julie Barker Clir Tim Leaver | Fay Hammond Update to the Panel
2023 monitoring. following a Council review,
and further to the report to
the Panel on 19/10/22
Commercial property Nick Denny/ Clir Tim Leaver | James Wheeler | An area of interest for the
assets and investment | Doug Ashworth Panel. Information
return/income requested on Council o
generation owned properties: whether &
they are properly used, g
and income is being ©
maximised
Information on Olga Bennet Cllr Tim Leaver | Fay Hammond Regular monitoring
Quarterly Monitoring (capital) To receive the monitoring
Reports (Revenue, Steve Muldoon reports which have been
Capital, and (revenue) recently presented to
Performance) Harriet Cabinet
Potemkin
(performance)
16 January | Performance, with Lee Shelsher Clir Ergin Erbil | Simon Pollock Discussed and agreed at “%
2024 particular focus on the work planning session g_
customer service/ call as an ongoing area of Q)
centre/ Council interest. Information %

Website/ self-serve/

requested on changes

G



library hubs
(Not MEQS)

being introduced and
towards self-service.
Information requested on
website analytics and
bounce rate and customer
experience.

Further to the report to the
Panel on 29/3/23

Council Companies: Will Wraxall Clir Leaver Fay Hammond An area of interest for the
how these are Panel Deferred from
developed and how 2022/23 work programme.
they operate Information requested on
the performance and
resilience of Council
Companies and how well
money is spent/invested.
Procurement, including | Michael Cllr Tim Leaver | Fay Hammond Update to the Panel
update on legislative Sprosson/ following a Council review
changes. Claire Reilly and legislative changes.
Further to the report to the
Panel on 19/10/22.
Information on Olga Bennet Clir Tim Leaver | Fay Hammond Regular monitoring.
Quarterly Monitoring (capital) To receive the monitoring
Reports (Revenue, Steve Muldoon reports which have been
Capital, and (revenue) recently presented to
Performance) Harriet Cabinet.
Potemkin
(performance)
7 March Temporary Joanne Drew Cllr George Sarah Cary Discussed and agreed at
2024 Accommodation and Claire Eldred Sawva Fay Hammond work planning — to be
Housing Revenue Olga Bennet Cllr Tim Leaver examined in depth.

Account budget

Financial information

ot abed



overview

requested in respect of
Housing pressures,
temporary accommodation

costs and the HRA budget.

Information on Olga Bennet Cllr Tim Leaver | Fay Hammond Regular monitoring.
Quarterly Monitoring (capital) To receive the monitoring
Reports (Revenue, Annette Trigg reports which have been
Capital, and (revenue) recently presented to
Performance) Sarah Gilroy Cabinet.
(performance)
11 April Budget for SEN Neil Best, Julian | Cllr Tim Leaver | Fay Hammond Discussed and agreed at
2024 children’s services / Minta & Peter Clir Abdul Tony Theodoulou | work planning — to be
care packages / Nathan Abdullahi (Perry Scott & examined in depth.
transport (Barbara Doug Wilkinson) | Financial information
Thurogood, requested in respect of
Sangeeta special needs schooling,
Brown & packages and transport
Andrew costs relating to SEN
Lawrence) children’s services.
Information on Olga Bennet Cllr Tim Leaver | Fay Hammond Regular monitoring.
Quarterly Monitoring (capital) To receive the monitoring
Reports (Revenue, Annette Trigg reports which have been
Capital, and (revenue) recently presented to
Performance) Sarah Gilroy Cabinet.

(performance)

T obed



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	4 Budget for SEN children's services, care packages & transport
	5 WORK PROGRAMME 2023/24



